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The site of the old Waterbury Brass Company is located at the end of
Idlewood Avenue in the southeast corner of Hamilton Park. Surroundineg it
are green fields with baseball diamonds and tree-filled open spaces,
Interstate 84 is an unfortunate intrusion on the south side of the site,
although the lad River, once the power source for the mill, also flows
along the south side.

The only building remaining on the site (also on the south side) is a
much altered circa 1870 storase building now used by the Park Commission.
It is a one story brick structure laid in common bond and is avproximately
65 feet by 24 feet. The four windows on the south elevation are covered
with vertical, hinsed planks, most likely as old as the buildinz itself.
Four windows on the north face of the building have been bricked in at a
later date.

An open cranite pit, which ®rmerly held one of the two waterwheels
is located northeast of the casting shop. It 12 surrounded by an iron fence
put up in 1925 to preserve the entire water wheel., The two iron hubs of
both wheels remain on the site (althouch, as of “ay 7, 1975, they were
removed for sandblastine and a coat of paint).

Immediately east of the enclosed pit is a wall of the stone dam once
used to trap the water needed to power the mill, Above it is the outline
of the canal trench which conveyed the water. When the. dam was opened,
the water flowed from the canal trench, through themll race, to the
water wheels.,

At the request of the Brass ¥ill Restoration Committee, a local
croup orsanized to preserve the site, the Connecticut Archaeological
Survey, Incorporated conducted survey and excavation worX at the
Waterbury Brass Company site in Hamilton Park, Two field crews worked at
the site October 13th and October 27, 1974, Primary goals of the survey
were: 1) To determine the location and existing condition of various
building foundations and 2) To recover any cultural material which might
aid in the historic restoration of the mill, The survey is completed
and the following report is hereby submitted:
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Feature #1-Rolling IMill Building Site

This was the largest building in the mill, containing the two
large water wheels, as well as the rolling and wire drawine machinery.

.

An analysis of the material found in this building is as follows:

Feature #1: TInterior southeast corner of building. This is
allezedly the area where wire was Arawn. A surface collection was
made in this area yielding small pjeces of wood, flass, brick, coal,
slag, nails and other miscellaneous metal objects. Excavations were
made by 3" levels to a depth of L4 feet, No stratification was evident,
the area having been filled at the time the buildine was razed, Vasive
stone blocks were still in place, presumably the foundation blocks
for the wire drawing machinery. Yeavy metal rinss were attached to
these blocks.

Feature #2: Tailrace-Wheel #2: This feature includes wth sides
of the tailrace for wheel #2, In an effort to locate the pillow block
supports, the west side of the tailrace was excavated to a devnth of 3
feet, but the precise location of the blocks could not be determined.
North of wheel #2, just outside the fenced enclosure, a test plt was
dug exposing both walls of the tailrace to a depth of approximately
8% feet. The bottom of the tailrace could not be established because
of extensive water seepare into the excavations., The full depth
of the excavation consisted of earth and rubble fill remaininsg from the
demolition of the building., Several different types of fire brick
were found, primarily from brickyards in New York and New .Jersey,

Peature #3: Tailrace-Wheel #1: The tailrace for wheel #1 was
first test-pitted, then excavated. The axle of the wheel was still
in place, although the pillow blocks appeared to have been disturbed.
The north wall of the tailrace was excavated to a depth of 30 inches.,
Alone the top of this wall were found support beams for the axle and
many nails, pleces of ~lass, brass Toundry slag, wire, some leather,
and the bowl of a clay pipe. Further excavation revealed a tunneled
exit flume running northwest from the railrace, This flume was
constructed of cut stone in a full arch and apvarently ran the lensth
of the Rolling ¥Will, @ap #2 indicates that, when the mill was in
operation, a stone floor covered the flume. At present, a portion
of the vparking lot covers it,
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Feature #4: Area Outside Northwest Corner of Rolling Mill
Rullding Site

Althoush this area has been disturbedby previous Park Department
excavation for parkine lots, test pits were dug to a depth of 30 inches,
A "hot spot" which was apparently a scrap pile from stampines operations
was discovered, containing 600 pieces of scrap plugs, cutouts, mins,
rines, and imperfect stampinegs,

Feature #5: Spinning and Tinishing Puilding Site

This building is located some 20 feet southwest of the Rolling and
Wire Mill., Portions of the north and west walls were located, as well
as several interior walls, Both sides of the north exterior wall were
excavated to a depth of four feet ten inches, The wall was apvrarently
dry masonry with a three-course brick cap., Condition of the interlor
face of this wall indicated no basement had been vresent on this side
of the buildine, Part of the north exterior wall and the entire east
wall are contained within the I-84 enclosure fence.

Feature #6: Foundry Building Site

This buildinz was apparently constructed by excavating to a depth
three feet, erecting a dry stone exterior wall and fillineg the
interior with larse stone which would serve as support for the heavy
foundry equipment.,

The survey did, in fact, locate the foundations of the four larcest mill
structures and, althouch extensive surface disruptions had occurred,

the impact on subsurface remains had been superficial, At the time

the rollinc mill was razed (c. 1904-05), both the exit flumes and the
basement portions of the buildings were filled with rubtble. There 1is
certainly enough cultural material in this rubble to warrant further
archaeolocical excavations if any nistorical reconstruction is
contemplated, Mo items of machinery or larse sectilons thereof were
located, presumably having been scavenged either by the mill's successors
or by the scrap metal drives of two wars.,
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In summary, a significant amount of cultural material was recovered
from a rather limited survey. Further excavations will undoubtedly
yield an even more comprehensive picture of the mill,



KE) SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC  _ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC ~ _COMMUNITY PLANNING ——LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
---1400-1499 XARCHEOQLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION —LAaw
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS —LITERATURE
—1600-1699 —ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY
—1700-1799 —ART __ENGINEERING —MusIC
X1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS X INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

__INVENTION

—RELIGION

__SCIENCE

—SCULPTURE
—SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—THEATER
—TRANSPORTATION
—OTHER (SPECIFY)

SPECIFIC DATES 1846

BUILDER/ARCHITECT Tsrael Holmes

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Waterbury Brass Company site 1is sienificant as one of the
earliest survivinz brass mill sites in the City of Waterbury, a city
which became world famous for brass manufacture during the nineteenth
century. Its ruins and Its history are & faséinating legacy to the City

of Waterbury and the Naugatuck Valley.
other brass mills developed from a series
in the late eighteenth century.

Connecticut was primarily
settled, but agricultural
in the area, and from the
individuals to make tools
men such as lenry CGrilley

manufacturing continued to improve arl in 1811, the
L.eavenworth, Hayden and Scovill was formed

At this time in history,

The Waterbury Brass Company and
of circumstances which occurred

the economy of

asricultural, The Naugatuck Valley was well
development was limited. WMinerals were plentiful
becinnine of the settlement were vsed by

and other small items. In the late 1700's,

and his brothers brought the method of

partnership of
(1ater, the Scovill ™"anufacturir

Company), establishines the first brass company in Waterbury.

The brass industry srew and became increasingly versatile, BRBrass
was used in the manufacture of clocks, volated ware, cards, brushes and
terbury Brass Company was set up by Israel
Tolmes, who used Timothy Porter's mill richts on the %ad River to secure
The Waterbury BRrass Company had the distinction

machinery. In 1846 the Va

vower for his operation,

of beins the Tirst new busines

s to roll brass and was also the first to

be incorporated., In 1852 the company bought the rigchts to 11.,%W. Hayden's

new process of spinnins brass which made the manufacture of round

products possible, The Waterbury

rrass Company went on to become the

larsest manufacturer of brass kettles in the United States. About 1855

they were producing about

at the ad River site,

o pot

85% of the country's rolled brass and brassware

Tsrael Holmes left the Waterbury Erass Company in 1853 to st up
another brass concern known as Holmes, RFooth and Hayden, ouvtdoing his
the Waterbury Brass Company became part of
Company and continued to be a maior producer

0ld firm in size. In 18

was dismantled.

o)
9(“
the larser American 2rass
until 1905, when the @aill stopp

éd .and -the building housine the waterwheel
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To emphasize the impact that the brass industry had on
the town of Waterbury one need only know that in 1895 there
were eishteen brass mills of sienificant size in the country
and that six of those were located in Waterbury, In addition,
five more of the eichteen were located in the Naugatuck Valleyv,

Over 5,000 Waterbury residents were employed by the brass
mills in the late 1800's, for the mills were Waterbury's
primary source of income. During the 19th century, the town
expanded greatly because of the mills, which provided such
a sound economic base.
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